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Highlights

Financial Highlights
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38% revenue growth to £16,360,000 (2009 £11,814,000)

35% growth in operating profit to £2,216,000 (2009 £1,645,000)
34% increase In pre-tax profit to £2,217,000 (2009 £1,658,000)
26% growth in fully diluted earnings per share to 11 3p (2008 9 Op)

117% Increase In cash flow before financing activities £1,785,000 (2009
£824,000)

687,000 shares bought back for £1,150,000
18% Increase In cash to £2,770,000 (2009 £2,343,000), and no debt
1 8p final dividend proposed, making 2 4p for the year (2009 1 9p)

Operational Highlights
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UK returned to significant growth (revenue up 42%)
Continued strong growth in North Amenca (revenue growth of 61%)

New offices in Switzerland and Germany continued to develop, growing
revenues by 62% and 41% respectively

Opened offices In strategically important markets China and Brazil
Management further strengthened — Chief Operating Officer appointed
Introduced two new Juicy products — DigiViduals™ and SatisTraction®
Serving 11 of the 20 largest buyers of market research globally

Increasing industry recognition five more awards including Marketing
Magazine’s Best Research Agency of 2010 and Research Magazine's
Best Place to Work
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Chairman’s statement

Brainduicer has had another good year, making progress in operational and strategic as well as
financial terms 2010 revenues increased by 38% to £16,360,000, and operating profit by 35% to
£2,216,000 Once again, our growth was purely organic

Reflecting these results and the encouraging outlook for the business, the Board I1s proposing a final
dividend of 1 8p per share, 38% higher than for 2009 This would take the full year payment to 2 4p,
an increase over 2009 of 26%

The 2010 resuits reinforce BrainJutcer's record of delivering consistent, strong growth Over the last 5
years (since January 2006), revenues and operating preofit have grown at an average annual rate of
37% and 47% respectively Over the same period, fully diluted earnings per share have grown from -
0 9p per share to 11 3p per share

Industry studies from InsideResearch and ESOMAR show that overall spending on market research
recovered modestly last year, after decliming in 2009 - the first time the industry had declined for many
years BrainJuicers growth rate clearly indicates that we again grew market share as our products
gained traction, especially among multinational clients

Several key developments 1n 2010 will stand us 1n good stead in years to come We continued to
expand and strengthen our teams to ensure that we have the people needed to faciitate further
growth In February Alex Batchelor joined in the new role of Chief Operating Officer Alex has already
made a very positive contribution, and was appointed to the Board in November

BrainJutcer continued to expand geographically last year Revenue growth was driven primanly by
our UK and US businesses Switzerland and Germany made good progress in only their second full
year of operation, and we opened new offices in Brazil and China, both key markets for the future

Continued long-term success for Brainduicer 1$ crucially dependent on the development of innovative
new products that add value for our clients 2010 saw substantal further investment in this area,
driven by an expanded “BrainJuicer Labs” team We are particularly excited about two new products,
DigiViduals™ and SatisTraction®, where early trials have produced very premising resuits

Our new software technology platform, developed at a cost of £1 6m, was substantively completed
last year and 1s now gradually being phased in The platform significantly increases our capacity and
provides a more reliable and faster respondent experience

During 2010 Unilever Ventures reduced its holding i Brainduicer from 37 8% te 14 1% Unilever
Ventures was an early investor in the business, investing in January 2003 We understand their need
to recycle capital and thank them for their steadfast support At the same time we welcome those new
investors who have taken a stake in BrainJuicer

Looking ahead, BrainJuicer 1s well placed to deliver further growth in 2011 and beyond At the same
time we will continue to invest heavily in our people, products and systems Although BrainJuicer
punches above 1ts weight in the world of market research, we are currently small in global terms We
continue to believe we have a tremendous opportunity to become cone of the leading players In our
ndustry

Ken Ford
Chairman
24 March 2011
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Chief executive’s statement

BramnJuicer 15 all about understanding people We think they're fascinating, and we're cunous about
how people tick What motivates them? What drives their decisions? We're looking for answers to
these questions, and pursuing better ways to understand and predict human behaviour

We take recent discoveries about human behaviour in psychology and neuroscience, in sociology and
behavioural economics, and create unigue and industry challenging market research tools from them
We have developed a suite of what we call “Juicy” products, which give our clients predictive, nuanced
and inspiring understandings of consumer behaviours

To date we have created three Juicy products measunng and enhancing the potential of chents’
insights (Insights Optmizer™), new products and or services (Predictive Markets) and
communications (CommScan™) As with all our Juicy products, each one fundamentally challenges
the current industry-wide appreach Given their controversial nature, each product has taken years of
experimentation to refine and to acquire the large-scale venfication needed to convince clients of therr
significantly supenor understanding and predictive capability

Our clients are responding Revenue from our Juicy products grew 31% in 2010 and we are
developing trusted adwisor relationships wathin our large multinational clients We served around 165
clients in 2010, and repeat business remains high clients representing 89% of 2009 revenue returned
for more 1n 2010

Qur reputation within the industry s also continuing to grow In 2010 we won five more awards,
including the Best Research Agency of 2010 and Best Place to Work, Best Paper and the Dawid
Winton Innovation Award for Emotion-into-Action™ advertising work, and the Jay Chiat Gold award for
our DigiViduals™ research robots

The Way we Work - Ensuning our Culture 1s as Juicy as our Products

Becoming a major force in the market research industry will take a great many talented and highly
motivated people To attract those people and bring cut the best In them, we need to ensure our
culture 1s as Juicy as our products To that end, we have been applying our creative thinking to the
way we run the business Central to our culture 15 to help staff find their drive - and to find your dnive
know your purpose, gain mastery and seek autonomy

Purpose. Instead of fiting staff to company prescnbed roles, we're encouraging them to seek the
type of work they want to do, and then we are investing time and effort to bend the organisation to fit
those aspirations Whilst there can be difficult orgamsational implications, we have already seen it
provide hugely motivational benefits Through this process we've formed our Labs team, developed
our operational capability, improved our HR coordiation and achieved a highly motivated client team

Mastery. We are supporting our people with increasing levels of traning and development and
encouraging a great deal of self-directed learning based on interest We have also set up the
BrainJuicer Academy with a world class programme to ensure a consistent level of attainment and
capabilty

Autonomy We're providing our people with more control over when they work, how they work and
where they work We believe that by providing our people with sufficient freedom to explore therr field
and pursue new Ideas we can foster an environment that encourages inncvation and creativity
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- Chief executive’s statement (continued)

Further Innovation

We have continued to invest heavily In our product development, led by our Labs team During the
year we have worked with a technology partner and developed a new Juicy product - DigiViduals™,
for extracting consumer insight from online social media “Research robots” are programmed to
represent a particular type of person that a client may be interested in a target audience, a
segmentation of customers, a lead consumer or a trend These online robots trawl Twitter and other
social media looking for comments, videos, pictures, and blogs that the characters could have said or
uploaded themselves In effect, they are conducting automated mass web ethnography to builld up a
nich, empathetic, detailed picture of their lives from which understanding, insights and new product
ideas can be generated Even through the tnal period, we generated revenue of £141,000 in 2010
and worked with four multinationals intngued by the approach

We have also developed an emotional customer satisfaction measurement tool, SatisTraction®, which
uses our award winning FaceTrace® to reveal and measure how customers are feelng How
customers feel has been shown to be the single most important factor in a brand’s growth or decline,
so being able to measure It so accurately and easily 1s a breakthrough in the industry We have
undertaken early tnals with four multinational clents, and generated revenue of £121,000 1n 2010

increased Credibility

To acquire preferred suppler status with an increasing number of our clients requires us to continually
expand our global footprint, our team of talented researchers, our scale of operation, our reputation
for nnovative research, and our credibility as a global research partner

2010 saw a significant growth in our globa! footprint We opened BrainJuicer offices in two of the most
strategically important markets for our chients China and Brazil We expanded our offices n
Germany, Switzerland and the UK, and our former licence partner in Canada became a wholly owned
subsidiary

We built the strength and depth of our teams and our Juicy methods are being increasingly referenced
in industry conferences and articles We were delighted to be voted Supplier of the Year by Del Monte
and voted the most innovative research agency n a poll of 700 of our peers In the USA

Credibility takes time to bulld but eleven years after BranJuicer was established, we are gaining
momentum, and great feedback from clients such as those below bodes well for further growth in 2011
and beyond

“| always look forward to working with BrainJuicer They have creative, innovative techniques for
getting meaningful feedback from consumers No other company I've worked with has been able to
provide such rch qualttative texture behind the quantitative numbers Plus I'm always impressed with
BrainJuicer's ability to present all of the information in such an intuitive, easy-to-use and fun format
All these factors, combined with the ‘can-do’ attitude of the account team makes BranJuicer a
pleasure to work with!”

Cathy Seltz, Director, Consumer Insights, McDonald's Asia

“Predictive Markets was ncredibly instructive, enlightening and actionable We were really able to get
behind the creative and understand Iin intimate detail the emotional effects of our work — and how well
it was doing its job  Very, very helpful

Fiona Naughton, Global Marketing Development Director, HTC

“BrainJuicer goes above and beyond - in terms of reporting, additional analysis, presenting in person
and delivering early Innovative tools, specifically Predictive Markets and Concept Optimizer have
been invaluable to our innovation process ”

Jonathan Weiner, Vice President, Consumer and Customer Strategy and Insights, Del Monte
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Chief executive’s statement (continued)

Growing Dehight and Profits

We believe profits are the consequence of doing something awesome and inspinng for our clents
Our innovative products, our client and employee focus, and our growing credibility are yielding strong
financial results The potential for growth remains huge We're on a long-term mission, and we've
moved into our second decade in business with a great sense of anticipation and confidence

John Kearon
Chief Juicer
24 March 2011
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Business and financial review

Our 2010 financial results demonstrated once again that we have an atiractive and scalable business
maodel

We describe ourselves as a technology enabled consultancy, with all of our research conducted
onhne, via a centralised software platform So whilst our research services are designed and
delvered by talented researchers, the technology provides efficiency, uniqueness and scale
advantages n our operations

We are able to charge at competitive rates, and yet still generate high margins for our services This
enables us to support a relatively high central overhead — around half of our people are in central
functions (the other half being in revenue-generating account management teams) — and still generate
attractive profits It's pnmanly within these high central overheads that we're investing for growth, for
example in our Labs product development team

Structure

Our account management market research teams are local, close to our clients, and are based n the
UK, the US, Netherlands, Germany, Switzerland, Brazid and China We also have a presence In
Canada supported by our US team, and in Australia via a icence partner

Our support functions are centralised and based predominantly in the UK We have a single
technology Infrastructure, a single operations team, a single financial centre (handhing payments,
invoicing, and receipts across all of our offices), and single marketing, Labs and software development
teams This enables us to maintain consistent research methods globally, and to expand into new
geographies at low cost and in a simple and controlled way Within this framework, account
management teams have high degrees of autonomy and are encouraged to be creative in how they
respond to cltent needs, and entrepreneurial in how they develop their businesses

Financral performance

The Company grew revenue by 38% in absclute terms and 36% In constant currency terms, to
£16,360,000 (2009 £11,814,000) Our gross profit, (our man internal financial performance
indicator), grew shghtly more, by 41%, to £12,622,000 (2009 £8,935,000) Our gross profit margin
rose to 77% from 76% in 2009

Growth was dnven primarily by our two biggest teams the UK and North Amenca, which represented
48% and 25% of our business respectively (in revenue terms) The UK grew revenue by 42% and
North America by 61% (55% In constant currency) Switzerland and Germany also performed well,
growing by 62% (51% n constant currency) and 41% (47% In constant currency) respectively
However the Netherlands declined by 12% {9% in constant currency), partly due to management
changes n that office and partly due to dechnes In the revenues from its largest client, due to
changing research spending patterns within that chent

The Company’s chent base 1s around 165 companies (2009 around 140 clients), and includes 11 of
the world’'s largest 20 buyers of market research (2009 11) Client satisfaction and repeat business
remains high with 89% of 2009 revenue represented by clients who have returned in 2010 We
delivered a total of 745 projects in 2010 (2009 601}, and the average revenue per project was
£22.000 {2009 £20,000), indicating continued progress in winning larger, more international projects
from clients

We have continued to build our teams Average headcount increased to 91 people (2009 70 people)
Administrative expenses grew as a result, by 43% to £10,406,000 (2009 £7,290,000) Staff costs
represented 69% of total administrative costs Through efficiency and scale gains, revenue per
employee was £180,000, up from £169,000 in 2009
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Business and financial review (continued)

Operating profit grew by 35% to £2,216,000 (2009 £1,645,000) and operating margin was flat at 14%
(2009 14%) All our established account management teams were profitable, with the UK contributing
£4,065,000, North America £1,589,000, and our other established countries £1,651,000 The
combined result for our two new countries, Brazil and China, was a loss of £117,000 The total profit
contribution of our account management teams was £7,188,000 before allocation of our central
overhead costs of £4,872,000

Interest income from our cash balances was negligible OQur tax charge was £737,000 (2009
£473,000) and the effective tax rate was 33%, up from 29% in 2009, as a result of a higher percentage
of our profits being generated from the US where corporation tax rates are comparatively high  Profit
after tax grew 25% to £1,480,000 (2009 £1,185,000)

Basic earnings per share grew to 11 7p (2008 8 2p) and fully diluted earnings per share to 11 3p
(2009 90p) Basic earnings per share 1s calculated as profit after tax divided by the weighted
average number of shares in issue dunng the year (12,604,214), down from 12,923,663 1n 2009 Fully
diluted earnings per share accounts for shares that would be 1ssued on exercise of stock options The
weighted average number of shares for our diluted earnings per share calculation was 13,101,205
(2009 13,107,085)

The Company generated £1,785,000 of cash flow before financing activities (1e dividends, share buy-
backs, and stock option share issues), up from £824,000 in 2008 This high level of cash flow was
generated after investing £1,077,000 in our new technology platform and other non-current assets
(2009 £470,000) Our cash flow performance was helped by a reduction in our debtor payback penod
to 50 days (2009 75 days), following implementation of a more efficient invoicing process

Our strong cash position, and lack of need for very much capital investment, allowed us to buy back
687,000 of our shares during the year for £1,150,000 (2009 30,000 shares for £39,000) We paid
£247,000 1n dividends (2009 final dividend of £169,000 plus 2010 interim dividend of £78,000), up
from £207,000 in 2009 We receved a small amount from stock option share 1ssues, £39,000 (2009
£38,000)

Our closing cash balance at the end of 2010 was £2,770,000 up from £2,343,000 at the end of 2009,
and we have no debt (2009 nil) Our cash balance at the end of the year represents 22p per share
(2009 18p)

The Company's non-current assets include £1,604,000 of software development in progress This
represents our new technology platform It has taken over 4 years to build, 1s now substantally
completed, and since year-end, has started to be used We began amortising the asset in January
2011, over an expected useful economic life of 7 years

The Company paid an interim dividend of 0 6p per share in April 2010, which was earlier In the year
than normal so that It preceded the change In tax rates for UK resident higher rate taxpayers on 6 April
2010 (2009 0 6p per share) The Board will be proposing a final dividend of 1 8p (net) per share
(2009 1 3p) at the Company's AGM 1n May If approved, the total of the interim and final dividend of
2 4p would be 26% higher than in 2008 (1 9p), and would be broadly in hine with the growth In
earnings per share If approved, the final dividend will be paid on 24 June 2011 to shareholders on
the register on 3 June 2011 and the shares will become ex-dividend on 1 June 2011 We expect to
maintain dividend growth broadly in line with earnings per share, going forward

Risks

In general terms, we take the view that eiminating all nsk would stifle creativity, eéxpenmentation and
entrepreneurialism, and dampen our growth We therefore do not attempt to do so We, however, do
take nsk seriously We endeavour to identify and protect the business from the big, remote, risks -
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Business and financial review (continued)

those that do not occur very often, but which, when they do, have major ramifications The types of
such event that we are concerned about and seek to manage are loss of a significant client, loss of
key personnel, material adverse event leading to significant loss of property, software, or data, or an
adverse legal claim, major outage in our survey platform (‘Juicing Centre')

Loss of a significant client

Whilst this 1s a significant nsk, it 1s becoming less so as the percentage of our business from any
single client 1s decliming (our largest client represented 10 6% of revenue in 2010 compared to 16 2%
in 2009) Nevertheless we go to considerable lengths to monitor service quahty and seek client
feedback, and in general client satisfaction has again been high

Loss of key personnel

The loss of a senior member of the team would have a negative impact on the business However, we
have a large management team, which includes each of our Country Managing Directors, our head of
Marketing and Business Development, our Head of Labs, as well as the COQ, CFO and Chief Juicer -
12 people — and so do not view the business as being overly dependent on any one individual As
with many rapidly growing businesses, we place significant demands on our people, and we are
therefore at nsk of staff turnover However the work environment 1s stimulating and we are placing
further emphasis on our culture and the way we work We also attempt to ensure that our
remuneration levels and structure encourage loyalty We continue to offer competitive basic salaries,
attractive bonuses, and a comprehensive package of benefits (commensurate with those found In
larger companies) for all of our pecple

Matenial adverse event leading to a significant loss of property, software, or data, or an adverse legal
claim

We can't guarantee that all eventualities are covered, but nevertheless have continued to endeavour
to protect the business from significant risks, through a combinaticn of '

+« Comprehensive professional indemnity insurance,

* Frequent and multiple back-ups and archiving of data on all servers and laptops,

» Sufficient focus on legal protections, for example through our terms and conditions

Major outage in our Juicing Centre

Were there to be a major outage In our Juicing Centre, due, for example to capacity constraints or a
secunty breach, we could be prevented from building surveys, collecting data and downloading
results This may result in significant delay in delivering client projects with a consequential loss of
revenue, reputational damage, and the costs of remedying the situation We have suffered relatively
minor cutages from time-to-ime but none has led to significant financial loss The worst in 2010 was
a secunty incident involving a malicious internet attack at the time of the WikiLeaks story This
affected our servers over a pericd of 2 weeks during which time they were down for in aggregate
around a day We understand that other companies suffered in a similar way at the tme We suffered
inconvenience, but no matenal financial loss Our new software platform, which we have begun to
implement, provides enhanced capacity, and most of our physical hardware I1s located 1n secure third
party data centres

Summary

The Company returned to trend growth in 2010 after lower growth in 2009 Revenue, profit, earnings
per share, cash flow and dividends have all grown strongly As in prior years, we have continued to
invest i product development, geographic expansion, operations and our techmical platiorm We
have ambitious investment plans in 2011 - still all organic - as we capitalise on the growing recognition
of our viston for market research

James Geddes
Chief Financial Officer, 24 March 2011
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Board of directors

Ken Ford

Non-executive Chairman

Ken was previously Chief Executive of Teather & Greenwood, the investment bank, becorming Deputy Chairman
and Chairman of Corporate Finance in 2004, and brings 36 years City expernience to the Company, including a
strong understanding of shareholder value, strategic planning and corporate fransactions Ken was Chairman of
the UK Society of Investment Analysts between 1985 - 1987, Chaiman of the Quoted Company's Alliance (QCA)
in 2003-2004 and 1s a former member of the EU Advisory Committee to the Corporation of London Ken's
previous directorships include Aberdeen Asset Management, Morgan Grenfell

John Kearon

Chief Executive Officer

John 15 responsible for overall strategic directon and commercial development of the Group John's role In
establishing and developing the BranJuicer business made him Emst & Young's “Emerging Entrepreneur of the
Year® in 2008 Prior to founding the BrainJuicer, John founded innovation agency, Brand Genetics Limited, which
invented new products and services for FT500 companies Before this John had been Planning Director of one of
the UK’s leading advertising agencies John started his career over 20 years ago as a graduate of Unilever's
management programme, nsing to be a semor marketer at Ehda Gibbs before moving into advertising

James Geddes

Chief Finance Officer

James is responsible for the finance and administrative functions within the Group James 1s a Chartered
Accountant, holds a Diploma in Corporate Treasury Management and 1s graduate of Harvard Business School's
executive programme He has over 20 years of financial management expenence and was previously Assistant
Treasurer of Fosters Brewing Group Limited, Executive Director, International Corporate Finance at MediaOne
Group and CFQO of lobox Oy (backed by Morgan Stanley Capital and sold to Telefonica) James has been
BrainJuicer's CFO since the Unilever UK Holdings' investment in January 2003

Alex Batchelor

Chief Operating Officer

Like John, Alex started his career at Unilever over 20 years ago, before leaving to spend 2 years in advertising
and then 6 years at brand consultancy Interbrand Then their career paths diverged and as John was establishing
BrainJuicer®, Alex was Vice President Global Brand at Orange, Marketing Director at Royal Mail and CMQ at
TomTom At the beginning of 2010 Alex joined BramJuicer® as Chief Operating Officer and joined the Board
later in the year He works closely with John and James Geddes on all aspects of the company and Is
responsible for the account management teams and for the operations and IT infrastructure

Mark Muth

Non-executive director

Mark 1s one of the three directors of Unilever Ventures and negotiated Unilever's imvestment in BrainJuicer in
January 2003 He has over 20 years of expenence in banking and venture capital Unilever Ventures leads and
manages investments in start-up and early stage companies, drawing on the Unilever group of companies’
expertise in food, home and personal care consumer products to bring value to its portfolio companies

Simon Godfrey

Non-executive director

Simon has over 30 years’ experence In the quantitative research industry Simon was a dwector of Research
Bureau Limited {now Research Internatonal UK Limited) until 1985 when he founded Simon Godfrey Associates
(“SGA"} SGA was one of the largest UK research suppliers when acquired by WPP PLC in 1898 Simon has
been a non-executive director of BrainJuicer UK since the Unilever UK Holdings’ investment in January 2003
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Directors’ report

The directors present the annua! report and audited financial statements of BrainJutcer Group PLC
{Registered Company Number 5940040) for the year ended 31 December 2010

Principal activities and business review
We are a full service quantitative market research agency

The profit attnbutable to equity holders of the company for the financial year was £1,480,000
{2009 £1,185,000) as shown In the consolidated income statement set out on page 26

A further review of the business and likely future developments of the Group 15 given In the
Chairman's statement on page 4 and in the Business and financial review con pages 8 to 10

The Directors have declared dividends as follows

2010 2009
£000 £:000

Ordinary Shares
Interim paid, 0 6p per share (2008 0 6p per share) 78 77
Proposed final, 1 8p per share (2008 1 3p per share) 237 169
Total ordinary dividends, 2 4p per share (2009 1 9p) 315 246

The interim dividend was paid on 1 Apri! 2010 to shareholders on the register at the close of business
on 19 March 2010

The directors and their interests

The present membership of the Board 1s set out below All directors served throughout the year apart
from Alex Batchelor, who was formally appointed to the Board on 26 November 2010

John Kearon
James Geddes
Alex Batchelor
Ken Ford
Simon Godfrey
Mark Muth

Directors’ interests in the Ordinary Shares of the Company and in share options are disclosed in the
Remuneration report on pages 21 and 22

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal nsks and uncertainttes affecting the Group are explained in the business and financial
and review on pages 9 and 10
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Directors’ report (continued)

Key performance indicators

The main financial key performance indicators are gross profit and fully diluted earnings per share
During the year gross profit increased by 41% to £12 6m  Fully diluted earnings per share increased
by 26% to 11 3p

Client and employee satisfaction levels are considered very important to the success of our business
Chent satisfaction 1s measured through individual chent feedback at the end of each project and
employee satisfaction through internal surveys

Innovation and credibility, evidenced by a number of industry awards, 1s considered key to acquiring
preferred supplier status with our clients

Payments to suppliers

The Group aims to settle invoices within agreed payment terms (generally 30 days from the date that
the invoice 1s received), provided the relevant services or goods have been received in accordance
with the agreed terms and conditions At 31 December 2010, trade payables represent 42 days of
average purchases of the Group (2009 54 days)

Donations

There were no donations to political parties or chantable orgamsations (2009 £nil)

Share capital

Details of changes in the share capital of the Company dunng the year are given in note 11 to the

financial statements As at 28 February 2011, the Company was aware of the following significant
Interests In the ordinary 1ssued share capital of the Company

At
28 February 2011
Number %
John Kearon 5,210,164 418
Unilever UK Holdings Limited 1,667,057 134

Financial risk management obhjectives and policies
A discussion of the Group's financial nsk management objectives and policies 1s provided in Note 8
Purchase of own shares

During the year the Company purchased 687,000 Ordinary Shares into treasury with an aggregate
nominal value of £6,870, representing 5 2% of the called up share capital of the Company, for cash
consideration of £1,131,000 During the year 46,297 of those treasury shares with an aggregate
nominal value of £463, representing 0 4% of the called up share capital of the Company, were
transferred to employees for cash consideration of £22,000 19,297 of those shares (with an
aggregate nominal value of £193 and representing C 1% of the called up share capital of the
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Directors’ report (continued)

Company) were then repurchased for cash consideration of £41,000

Following these transactions, at 31 December 2010 the number of ordinary shares amounted to
13,113,114 (2009 12,932,645) of which shares held in treasury amounted to 660,000 (2009 Nil)

Employment policies

The Group 1s committed to following the applicable employment laws in each terntory in which it
operates The Group is committed to fair employment practices, including the prohibition of all forms of
discrimination and attempts as far as possible to give equal access and farr treatment to all employees
on the basis of ment Wherever possible we provide the same opportunities for disabled people as for
others If employees become disabled we would make every effort to keep them in our employment,
with appropnate traning where necessary

Health and safety policles

The Group 1s committed to conducting its business in a manner which ensures high standards of
health and safety for its employees, visitors and the general public

Auditor

The auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP, have indicated therr willingness to continue in office, and a
resolution that they be re-appointed will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
James Geddes

Chief Financial Officer
24 March 2011
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Corporate governance report

Introduction

The Board of BrainJuicer Group PLC s committed to high standards of corporate governance, which it
considers a pre-requisite to support the growth and ambitions of the Group Whilst it 1s not a
requirement for companies listed on the Alternative Investment Market (*AIM™) to comply with all the
provisions In the Combined Code, the Board takes the Code senously The Group also places
particular importance on the guidelines 1ssued by the Quoted Companies Allance for Companies

There are areas where the Group 1s not in compliance with the Combined Code but the Directors
believe that full comphance 1s not practicable for a group of BrainJuicer's size and at its stage of
development This report sets out the procedures and systems currently in place at BrainJuicer and
explains why the Board considers them effective The Board has committed to reviewing comphance
with the Cede regularly

The Board

The Board comprises three executive directors and three non-executive directors Their biographical
detalls are presented on page 11

The Board meets formally 11 times a year and no director in office duning the year missed more than 2
meetings The Board discharges its responsibiities through management team meetings and regular
informal meetings as would be expected in a Group of BrainJuicer’s size

Ken Ford 1s Chairman of the Group and John Kearon its Chief Executive Officer John 1s also the
founder of BrainJuicer and a significant shareholder His role centres on formulating the Group's
strategy and drniving its commercial development The Board's three non-executive directors act as a
sounding board and challenge the executive directors both at monthly Board meetings and on a
regular and informal basis Matters referred to the Board are considered by the Board as a whole and
no one individual has unrestricted powers of decision There are procedures and controls, including a
schedule of matters that require the Board's specific approval This schedule ncludes

Approval of the Group's strategy, long-term objectives and business plan,

Approval of the extension of the Group’s activities into new terrtones,

Approval of significant capital expenditure beyond that budgeted,

Changes refating to the Group's capital structure, including debt-raising, reduction of capital,

share issues and buy backs,

» Ensunng that the Group has effective reporting and internal control systems and an adequate
nisk assessment procedure,
Nominations for Board and Committee appointments, and

» Consideration of key senior management appointments

® & & 0

Where directors have concerns which cannot be resolved in connection with the running of the Group
or a proposed action, their concerns would be recorded in the Board Minutes This course of action
has not been required to date

The drectors can obtain independent professional advice at the Company’'s own expense In
performance of their duties as directors
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Board (continued)

Each year at the Annual General Meeting, one-third of directors are required to retire by rotation,
provided all directors are subject to re-election at intervals of no more than three years This year, Ken
Ford and John Kearon are scheduled to retire by rotation and have confirmed ther willingness to be
put forward for re-election at the 2011 Annual General Meeting Alex Batchelor, having been
appointed after the 2010 Annual General Meeting, will retire and be put forward for re-election at the
2011 Annual General Meeting

Non-executive directors

The three non-executive directors are considered by the Board to be independent of management
The guidance in the Combined Code indicates that the non-executive directors’ independence might
be impared as Mark Muth represents a significant shareholder, Unilever UK Holdings Limited
However, the Board considers Mark to have acted in an independent manner, and at all imes to have
endeavoured to act in the interests of all shareholders Moreover, Mark does not have a personal
material economic interest in BrainJuicer given his personal net wealth The terms and conditions of
the non-executive directors’ appointments are available for inspection at the Company’s registered
office

Remuneration Committee

The membership and a summary of the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee can be
found on pages 21 to 24

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, compristng Mark Muth (Chairman), Simon Godfrey and Ken Ford, the three
non-executive directors, was established on 17" November 2006 The Board considers that Mark
Muth has recent and relevant financial experience He has bullt a career in banking and venture
capital and 15 a member of the Board of several small, entrepreneurial companies If required, the
committee I1s entitled to request independent advice at the Company’s expense in order for it to
effectively discharge its responsibilities

The Committee’s main role and responsibilities are to

Monitor the integnty of the financial statements of the Group,
Review the Group's Internal financial controls and nsk management systems,
Make recommendations to the Board, for it to put to the shareholders for their approval In
relation to the appointment of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms
of reference of the external auditor,

* Discussion of the nature, extent and timing of the external auditor's procedures and
discussion of external auditor's findings,

¢+ Review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process,

» Develop and implement policy on the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit
services, and

¢ Report to the Board, dentifying any matters in respect of which 1t considers that action or
improvement 1s required, and

¢ Ensure a formal channel 1s avallable for employees and other stakeholders to express any
complaints in respect of financial accounting and reporting
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Audit Committee {continued)

The Committee 1s scheduled to meet twice in each financial year and at other imes If necessary

The Group does not currently have an internal audit function, which the Board considers appropriate
for a Group of BrainJuicer's size The Audit Committee will review risk assessments and the need for
an internal audit function on a periodic basis

Intermal control procedures

The Board Is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and nsk management, and for
reviewing the effectiveness of these systems These systems are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the nisk of falure to achieve business objectives, and to provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance agamnst matenal misstatement or loss

The key features of the Group’s internal controls are described below

e The Group has a clearly defined organisational structure with appropnate delegation of
authority,

¢ The Board approves a one year budget, including monthly income statements, balance sheets
and cash flow statements The hudget 1s prepared in conjunction with Country Managers to
ensure targets are feasible,

» Forecasts are updated on a penodic basis to take into account the most recent estimates On
a monthly basis, actual results are compared to the budget and presented to the Board on a
timely basis,

The Board and senior management team review key performance indicators,
A lmited number of directors and senior executives are able to sign cheques and authonse
payments Payments are not permitted without an approved invoice,

+ Reconciliations of key balance sheet accounts are performed and independently reviewed by
the finance team

The Board 1n conjunction with the Audit Committee keeps under review the Group's internal control
system on a penodic basis The Board seeks to ensure risk assessment procedures and responses
are continuously improved

Communications with shareholders

The Board recognises the impaortance of regular and effective communication with shareholders The
pnimary forms of communication are

e The annual and intenm statutory financial reports and associated investor and analyst
presentations and reports,

¢ Announcements relating to trading or business updates released to the London Stock
Exchange,

e The Annual General Meeting which provides shareholders with an opportunity to meet the
Board of directors and to ask questions relating to the business

Going concern

After making enquiries, at the time of approving the financial statements the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for at least 12 months from the approval of these financial statements For this
reason, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements
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Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee

The Group has established a Remuneration Committee, comprising the three non-executive directors,
Ken Ford, Simon Godfrey and Mark Muth

The Committee’s main role and responsibilities are as follows

s To review, and determine on behalf of the Board, the specific remuneration and incentive
packages for each of the company's executive directors,

+ To review, and approve on behalf of the Board, the remuneration and benefits of senior
management,

+ To review, and make recommendations to the Board in respect of, the design of remuneration
structures and levels of pay and other incentives for employees of the Group, including share
option awards and any adjustments to the terms of share ownership and share incentive
schemes,

¢ To be responsible for reporting to the Group’s shareholders In relation to remuneration
policies applicable to the Group’s executive directors

The Committee may invite the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Finance Officer and Chief Operating
Officer to attend meetings of the Remuneration Committee The Chief Executive Officer 1s consulted
on proposals relating to the remuneration of the Chief Finance Officer and Chief Operating Officer and
of other senior executives of the Group The Chief Executive Officer 1s not involved in setting s own
remuneration

The Commiitee may use remunerahon consultants to advise it in setting remuneration structures and
policies The Committee 1s exclusively responsible for appeinting such consultants and for setting
their terms of reference

The Committee's terms of reference are reviewed and approved by the Board These are avallable for
Inspection at the Group's registered office

Remuneration policy

The Group's policy on remuneration 1s to provide a package of benefits, including safary, bonuses and
share options, which reward success and individual contnbutions to the Group's overall performance
appropriately, while avoiding paying more than 1s necessary for this purpose The Group's Articles of
Association do not permut directors’ remuneration to exceed £750,000 per annum in aggregate In
addition, the Remuneration Committee takes into account remuneration packages of comparable
companies when making recommendations to the Board

Performance-related elements of remuneration are designed to ahbgn the interests of executive
directors with those of shareholders and accordingly are set as a significant proportion of total
remuneration

Stock Options

The Group considers that active participation in a share option plan 15 an effective means of
incentivising and retatning high quality people Directors and employees are eligible to participate In
the scheme Further details of the option plan and outstanding options as at 31 December 2010 are
gwven in note 11 to the financial statements
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Remuneration Report (continued)

Service agreements

John Kearon and James Geddes entered into service agreements with BrainJuicer Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company on 22" January 2003 The agreements include restrictive
covenants which apply during employment and for a period of 12 months after termination

John Kearen's agreement can be terminated on six month's notice in writing by either the Company or
by John James Geddes’ agreement can be terminated on 12 months notice in wrnting by the
Company and 6 months’ notice by James

Non-executive directors

The remuneration of the non-executive directors I1s determined by the executive directors

Ken, Mark and Simon’s appointments can be terminated on six months' notice in writing by either the
Company or by the non-executive director However, the Company has entered into an agreement

not to exercise its nght to terminate Mark's appointment for as long as Unilever UK Holdings remains
the registered holder of not less than 10 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of the Company

Directors’ emoluments

Remuneration in respect of the directors was as follows

Benefits
Salary in kind Bonus 2010 2009
£ £ £ £ £
John Kearon 160,000 2,852 48,000 210,852 173,738
James Geddes 135,581 3,002 40,674 179,347 135,829
Alex Batchelor* 123,750 1,315 37,125 162,190 -
Ken Ford 30,000 - - 30,000 24,000
Simon Godfrey 35,300 - - 35,300 35,300
Mark Muth - - - - -
484,631 7,259 125,799 617,689 368,867

Money purchase pension contnbutions in respect of the directors were as follows

2010 2009

£ £

John Kearon 9,600 8,930
James Geddes 8,135 6,953
Alex Batchelor* 7,425 -
25,160 15,883

*Remuneration disclosed in respect of Alex Batchelor 1s for the period from his appointment as Chief
Operating Officer on 1 February 2010 He was appointed to the Board of directors on 26 November
2010
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Remuneration Report (continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Gains made on exercise of share options dunng the year were as follows

James Geddes
Simen Godfrey

21

2009
£

188,956
69,615

Directors’ interests

258,571

Directors’ Interests in Ordinary Shares of 1p each as at 31 December 2010 are shown below

Number of 1p ordinary shares

31 December

2010
John Kearon 5,210,164
James Geddes 248,325
Alex Batchelor 101,852
Ken Ford 20,000

Simon Godfrey 84,298

1 January 2010

5,630,187
373,325

20,000
84,298

Directors’ interests in share options over 1p Ordinary Shares in the Company were as follows

Employee share scheme

Earliest Number at Number at
exercise Exercise 1Jan Grantedin Exercised 31 Dec
Date of grant date Expirydate  pnce (p) 2010 year in year 2010
John Kearon
19/01/2007 01/01/2008  18/01/2017 162 5p 60,213 - - 60,213
James Geddes
19/01/2007  01/01/2008  18/01/2017 162 5p 60,213 - - 60,213
Alex Batchelor
22/03/2010 01/04/2011  22/03/2020 149 Op - 113,334 - 113,334
18/05/2010  01/01/2011 18/05/2020 00p - 116,667 - 116,667
- 230,000 - 230,000

120,426 230,000

- 350,426
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Remuneration Report (continued)

Long term incentive scheme
During the year the Company established a long term incentive plan for senior executives

The awards shal! vest on 30 April 2014 (the “Performance Date”), If the Achieved Share Price 1s at
least £3 per share, where the Achieved Share Price s the average of the market value of a share for a
period of 30 days fimishing on 29 Apnl 2014

The total value payable under the scheme 1s calculated as 15% of the difference between the
Achieved Share Price (If in excess of £3 per share), and £3 per share multipled by the number of
Issued shares at the Performance Date This 1s then allocated amongst the participants in the scheme
In accordance with the number of unuts they were granted, as a percentage of the total number of urits
availlable to be awarded under the scheme (10,000 units)

Each of the three executive directors (John Kearon, James Geddes and Alex Batchelor), were
awarded 1,235 units  So the percentage of the total value payable under the scheme to each of them
would be 12 35%

Payment under the scheme will be by way of shares (or zero cost options), where the number of
shares (or zero cost options) granted to participants would be determined by reference to the value of
the units and the share price at the Performance Date

The number of units awarded to directors dunng the year was as follows

Number
Share  Number at 31
Performance price at1Jan Granted Exercised Dec
Date of award Date  Expiry date target 2010 In year In year 2010
John Kearon
18/05/2010 30/04/2014  18/05/2020 £3 - 1,235 - 1,235
James
Geddes
18/05/2010 30/04/2014  18/05/2020 £3 - 1,235 - 1,235
Alex
Batchelor
18/5/2010 30/04/2014  18/05/2020 £3 - 1,235 - 1,235

The Remuneration Committee believes that the dilution to shareholders would be relatively modest,
given the growth in the Group’s share price that must be achieved before any shares are awarded

Simon Godfrey
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
24 March 2011
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements n
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the directors have prepared the group financial statements in accordance with International
Financiai Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Umion (IFRSs) and have elected to
prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) The financial statements are
required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and
of the profit or loss of the group for that penod In preparing these financial statements, the directors
are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether applicable IFRSs and United Kingdom Accounting Standards in respect of the group
and parent company financial statements respectively, have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

s prepare the financia!l statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s iInappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

In so far as each of the directors s aware

s there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and
+ the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information

The directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

NPV

James Geddes
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
24 March 2011
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Independent auditor's report to the members of
BrainJuicer Group PLC

We have audited the financial statements of BrainJuicer Group Plc for the year ended 31 December
2010 which compnse the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheet and parent company balance sheet, the
consolidated cashflow statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the related notes,
the parent company balance sheet and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements 1s applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union The financial reparting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 23 the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB’s) Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion

+ the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the group's and of the parent
company's affairs as at 31 December 2010 and of the group's profit for the year then ended,

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union,

» the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2008
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Report of the independent auditor to the members of
BrainJuicer Group PLC (continued)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared i1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you If, in our opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Zhoibo. UV P,
n Corbishley

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thomnton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Centrat Milton Keynes

24 March 2011
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Consolidated income statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2010

2010 2009

Note £000 £000
Revenue 4 16,360 11,814
Cost of sales (3,738) {(2,879)
Gross profit 12,622 8,935
Administrative expenses {10,4086) (7,290)
Operating profit 4 2,216 1,645
Investment income 18 1 13
Finance costs B .
Profit before taxation 2,217 1,658
Income tax expense 19 {737) (473)
Profit for the financial year 1,480 1,185
Attributable to equity holders of the 1,480 1,185
Company
Earnings per share for profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company
Basic earnings per share 21 11.7p 92p
Diluted earmings per share 21 11.3p 9 0p

All of the activittes of the Group are classed as continuing

The notes on pages 31 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2010

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

27

Other comprehensive iIncome for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year
and amounts attributable to equity holders

2010 2009
£000 £000
1,480 1,185

23 (65)
23 (65)
1,503 1,120

The notes on pages 31 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated balance sheet

AS AT 31 December 2010

Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Financial assets — available for sale investments
Deferred tax asset

N
NNoon

Current assets

Inventories g
Trade and other receivables 10
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the

Company

Share capital 11
Share premium account

Merger reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve

Retained earnings

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current
Provisions 12

Non-current habilities

Current
Provisions 12
Trade and other payables 13

Current income tax liabilities
Current liabilties

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Registered Company No §940040

2010
£°000

259
1,623
133
97

2,112

47
4,719
2,770

7,536
9,648

131
1,549
477
172
2,990

5,319

78
78

4,004
247

4,251
4,329
9,648

23

129
1,447
477
149
2,533

4,735

28
28

25
2,593
195

2,813
2,841
7,576

These financial statements were approved by the directors on 24 March 2011 and are signed on their

behalf by

Director Director

S
John Kearon James Geddes (j ﬁ M

The notes on pages 31 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statoments.
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Consolidated cash flow statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2010

Net cash generated from operations
Tax pad

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash receved
Purchases of property, plant and equiprment
Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of available for sale financial assets
Interest received

Net cash used by investing activities
Net cash flow before financing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from other issuance of ordinary shares
Dividends paid to owners

Purchase of own shares

Net cash used by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note

24

29
2010 2009
£000 £000
3,536 1,645
(675) (364)
2,861 1,281
(43) -
(272) (70)
(762) (357)
- (43)
1 13
(1,076) (457)
1,785 824
39 38
(247) (207)
(1,150) (39)
(1,358) (208)
427 616
2,343 1,727
2,770 2,343

The notes on pages 31 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2010

30

Foreign
Share currency
Share premium Merger translation Retained
capital account reserve reserve earnings” Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2009 126 1,412 477 214 1,398 3,627
Profit for the financial year - - - - 1,185 1,185
Other comprehensive tncome
Currency translation differences - - - (65) - (65)
Total comprehensive income - - - (65) 1,185 1.120
Transachions with owners
Employee share options scheme
- value of employee services - - - - 133 133
- proceeds from shares issued 3 35 - - - 38
- Deferred tax debited to equity - - - - (45) (45)
- Current tax credited to equity - - - - 69 69
Dwidends paid to owners - - - - (207) (207)
Purchase of own shares - - - - (39) (39)
Employee share incentive award - - - - 39 39
3 35 - - (50) (12)
At 31 December 2009 129 1,447 477 149 2,533 4,735
Profit for the financial year - - - - 1,480 1,480
Other comprehensive Income
Currency translation differences - - - 23 - 23
Total comprehensive income - - - 23 1,480 1,503
Transactions with owners
Employee share options scheme
- value of employee services - - - 308 308
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 1 37 - - - 38
- Current tax credited to equity - - - - 66 66
Dwidends paid to owners - - - - (247) (247}
Purchase of own shares - - - (1,150) (1,150)
Non-employee share based payment 1 65 - - - 66
2 102 - - (1,023) (919)
At 31 December 2010 131 1,549 477 172 2,890 5,319

*Comparatives have been restated to combine Other reserve (being adjustments to equity in respect of share

based payments) with retained earnings

The notes on pages 31 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2010

General information

BrainJuicer Group PLC (“the Company”) was incorporated on 19 September 2006 in the United
Kingdom The Company 1s United Kingdom resident The address of the registered office of the
Company, which is also its principal place of business, 1s given on page 12 The Company's shares
are listed on the Alternative Investrent Market of the London Stock Exchange (*AIM”)

The Company and its subsidiaries (together “the Group™) provide on-ine market research services
Further detall of the Group’s operations and its principal activity 1s set out In the Directors’ Report on
pages 1310 15

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 (including the comparatives for the
year ended 31 December 2009} were approved by the board of directors on 24 March 2011

Basis of Preparation

The Group has prepared its Annual Report in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {"IFRSs") as adopted in the European Unton, IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies Act
2006 apphcable to companies reporting under IFRS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain crtical
accounting estmates It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies The areas involving a high degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
staterments are disclosed in note 3

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic envirenment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’)
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (GBP), which 1s the
Company's functional and presentation currency

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting pohcies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below These policies have been consistently appled to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated

The following new standards and amendments to standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2010

IFRS 3 (revised) '‘Business combinations' and consequential amendrnents to IAS 27, 'Consolidated
and separate financial statements’, IAS 28 'Investments in associates’, and |AS 31, 'Interests in joint
ventures', are effective prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date 1s on or
after the beginnung of the first annual reporting penod beginnung on or after 1 July 2009

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisiion method to business combinations but with
some significant changes compared with IFRS 3 For example, all payments to purchase a business
are recorded at far value at the acquisition date, with contingent payments classified as financial
labiitles subsequently re-measured through the Income statement There 1s a choice on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basts to measure the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the
acquiree's net assets All acquisition costs are expensed
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2010
Principal accounting policies {continued)

As the Group has adopted IFRS 3 (revised), it 1s required to adopt IAS 27 (revised), 'consolidated and
separate financial statements’, at the same tme IAS 27 (revised) requires the effects of all
transactions with non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity If there ts no change in control and
these transactions will no longer result in adjustments to goodwill The standard also specifies the
accounting when control 1s lost Any remaining interest in the entity 1s re-measured to fair value and a
gain or loss 1s recognised in profit or loss There has been no impact of IAS 27 (revised) on the current
penod There have been nec transactions whereby an interest in an entity 1s retained after the loss of
control of that entity, there have been no transactions with non-controlling interests

Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards, relevant to the
financial statements of the Group, have been published and are mandatory for the Group's accounting
penods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 or later periods, but the Group has not adopted them
early

IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments’ (effective from 1 January 2013)

In November 2009, the IASB 1ssued IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ as the first step in s project to
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classifying and measuring financial assets that must be applied for all accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 (once endorsed by the EU), with early adoption
permitted Of particular relevance to the Group will be the measurement of equity instruments  All
equity investments within the scope of IFRS 9 are to bhe measured at fair value in the balance sheet,
with value changes recognised In profit or loss, except for those equity iInvestments for which the entity
has elected to report value changes in ‘other comprehensive income' There will be no 'cost exception'
for unquoted equities As explained In Note 7 to these financial statements, at the balance sheet date
the carrying amount of unquoted equities and related derivatives measured at cost amounts to
£133,000 (2009 £133,000)} From 1 January 2013, there will be no exemption from the requirement to
measure such instruments at fair value where the underlying secunties are unguoted

Revised IAS 24 (revised), ‘Related party disclosures’ (effective from 1 January 2011)

Revised IAS 24 (revised), ‘Related party disclosures’, 1ssued in November 2009 It supersedes 1AS
24, '‘Related party disclosures’, issued in 2003 1AS 24 (revised) 1s mandatory for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2011 Earlier application, in whole or in part, is permutted

The revised standard clanfies and simplifies the definitton of a related party and removes the
requirement for government-related entities to disclose details of all transactions with government and
other government-related entties The Group will apply the revised standard from 1 January 2011
When the revised standard 1s applhed, the group and the parent will need to disclose any transactions
between its subsidiaries and its associates
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Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertaking
drawn up to 31 December 2010 Subsidiaries are all entihes {including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to control the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits
from its activities The Group obtains and exercises control through voting nights The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity Subsidianies are fully consolidated from the date
on which control i1s transferred to the Group They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary 1s the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests iIssued by the Group The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement
Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred Identffiable assets acquired, habilities and
contingent liabilities assumed 1n a business combination are measured imibally at therr fairr values at
the acquisition date On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling
Interest in the acquiree either at farr value or at the non-controlling interest’'s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest n the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwill

All transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation Unrealised gains on transactions
between the Group and its subsidiaries are ebminated Unrealised losses are also elminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an imparment of the asset transferred Amounts reported In the
financial statements of subsidianies have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group

IFRS 3 (revised) was applied to the acquisition dunng the year Business combinations pnior to 1
January 2010 were accounted for under IFRS 3

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at histoncal cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses Depreciation 1s provided to wnte off the cost of all property, plant and
equipment to its residual value on a straight-line basis over its expected useful economic lives, which
are as follows

Furniture, fittings and equipment 5 years
Computer hardware 2to 3 years

The residual value and useful life of each asset s reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date
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Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries, as defined In the basis of consolidation section above, I1s
included In Intangible Assets Goodwill 1S tested annually for impairment and carned at cost less
accumulated impairment losses Impairrment losses on goodwill are not reversed Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold Goodwill
1s allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing The allocation 1s made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according to operating segment

Software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitahised at the cost of acquisiion These costs are
amortised on a straight-ine basis over ther estmated useful economic Wfe of two years Such
amortisation (s charged to admiristrative expenses

Costs incurred in the development of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are
recognised as Intangible assets Costs include professional fees and directly attributable employee
costs required to bring the software into working condition  Non-attributabte costs are expensed under
the relevant iIncome statement heading

Furthermore, internally-generated software 1s recognised as an intangible asset only If the Group can
demonstrate all of the following conditions

(a) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
(b} its Intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it,

(c) its ability to use or sell the intangible asset,

{(d) how the intangible asset will generate probable future econcmic benefits,

(&) among other things, the Group can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it 1s to be used internally, the usefulness of the
intangible asset,

(f) the avalability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the devetlopment
and to use or sell the intangible asset,

(9) s ability to measure reliably the expenditure atinbutable to the intangible asset during its
development

Internally-generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight-tine basis over their useful econcmic
Iives Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure 1s
charged to administrative expenses in the period in which 1t 1s incurred Once completed, and
avallable for use Iin the business, internally developed software I1s amortised on a straight ine basis
over its useful economic life which varies between 2 and 7 years

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying amount of its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets for any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such
Incication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, If any Intangible assets not available for use are tested for impairment on at least
an annual basis The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value In
use
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash in hand and bank deposits availlable on demand

Inventories - work in progress

Woerk 1n progress comprises directly attributable costs on incomplete market research projects and 1s
held in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Income taxes

Current income tax habilittes comprise those obligations to fiscal authonties relating to the current or
prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the balance sheet date They are calculated according to the
tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal penods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit
for the year All changes to current tax assets or llabilities are recognised as a component of tax
expense In the income statement, except where 1t relates to items charged or credited to other
comprehensive income or directly to equity

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the lhability method on temporary differences This
involves the comparnson of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements with their respective tax bases In addition, tax losses avallable to be carned forward as
well as other income tax credits to the Group are assessed for recognition as deferred tax assets

Deferred tax habilites are always provided for in full Deferred tax assets are recogmised to the extent
that it 1s probable that the underlying deductible temporary differences will be able to be offset against
future taxable ncome Deferred tax assets and liabibities are calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply to their respective penod of realisation, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax I1s recognised as a component of tax
expense n the Income statement, except where it relates tc items charged or credited to other
comprehensive Income or directly to equity

Operating lease agreements

Rentals applicable t¢ operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership
remain with the lessor are charged to the income statement net of any incentives recewved from the
lessor on a straight line basis aver the penod of the lease

Revenue recognition

Revenue I1s recognised only after the final written debnef has been delivered to the client, except on
the rare occasion that a large project straddles a financial pertod end, and that project can be sub-
divided into separate discrete deliverables, in such circumstances revenue I1s recognised on delivery of
each separate deliverable

Employee benefits

All accumulating employee-compensated absences that are unused at the balance sheet date are
recognised as a hability

The Group operates several defined contribution pension plans The Group pays contributions to
these plans based upon the contractual terms agreed with each employee The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contnbutions have been paid The contnbutions are recogrised as
employee benefit expense when they are due
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Share-based payment transactions

The Group 1ssues equity settled share-based compensation to certain employees (including directors)
Equity settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant The farr value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payiment 1s expensed on a stratght-line
basis over the vesting penod, together with a corresponding increase In equity, based upon the
Group's estimate of the shares that will eventually vest These estimates are subsequently revised if
there I1s any indication that the number of options expected to vest differs from previous estimates Any
cumulative adjustment prior to vesting 1s recognised n the current pertod No adjustment s made to
any expense recognised In pricr periods

The fair value of option awards with time vesting performance conditions are measured at the date of
grant using the Hull-White option pncing model The expecied life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management's best estmate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restricttons and behavioural considerations

The farr value of awards made with market-based performance conditions (for example, the entity's
share price) are measured at the grant date using 2 Monte Carlo simulation method The awards
made In respect of the Group's long term incentive scheme have been measured using such a
method

Non-employee share-based payments made through the 1ssue of the Company’s ordinary shares are
measured at the date of grant based upon the market value of the shares awarded

Social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of share options 1s considered
Integral to the grant itself, and the charge 1s treated as a cash-settled transaction

Provisions

Provisions for dilapidaticns are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and the amount has been reliably estimated Where matenal, provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the obligation
The increase in the provision due to passage of time s recognised as interest expense

Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s subsidiares are measured using the
currency of the prmary economic environment in which the subsidiary operates (‘the functional
currency’) The consolidated financial statements are presented in Sterling ('GBP'), which 1s the
Company's functionatl and the Group's presentation currency

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates
prevaiting at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses ansing from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised In profit or loss
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Foreign currencles {continued)

The results and financial position of all Group companies that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

(a) assets and liabiliies for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the
balance sheet date,

(b) income and expenses for each iIncome statement are translated at average exchange rates, and

(c} all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity

On consoldation, exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to shareholders’ equity When a fereign operation 1s partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded In equity are recognised in the income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported In a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker The chief operating decision-maker, who 1s responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Chief
Executive Officer

Financial instruments
Financlal assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categones loans and recewvables and
avallable-for-sale financial assets The classffication 1s determined by management at inital
recognition, being dependent upon the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired

Loans and receivables

Loans and recelvables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted 1n an active market They are included In current assets The Group's loans and
receivables comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet

Trade receivables are inttially recorded at farr vatue, but subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method Provision agamst trade receivables 1s made when there 1s objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due to It in accordance with the original
terms of those receivables The amount of the write-down I1s determined as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
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Financial instruments (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

‘Avallable-for-sale’ financial assets include all financiai assets other than dernwvatives, loans and
receivables They are classified as non-current unless management intend to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date Investments are initially recorded In the
balance sheet at far value plus transaction costs, uniess the asset is held for trading, in which case the
transaction cost is expensed In the income statement Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership Avallable-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carned at farr value The far values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices If the market for a financial asset I1s not active (or the financial asset I1s an unlisted secunty), the
Group establishes fair value by reference to other recent comparable arm’s length transactions or other
quoted instruments that are substantially the same, and, or, by discounted cash flow analysis

investments 1n equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price n an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, and dernvatives that are linked to (and must be settled
by delivery of) such unquected equity instruments, are measured at cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there I1s objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets 1s impaired In the case of equity secunties classified as avallable-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the secunty below its cost I1s considered
as an indicator that the securities are impared If any such evidence exsts for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value — 1s removed from equity and recognised in the income statement Imparrment losses
recognised In the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income
statement

Financial liabllities

Financial liabilites are initally recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method Financial liabilites and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An equity instrument 1s any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all of its financial
habilities

Where the contractual obligations of financial instruments (including share capitaf) are equivalent to a
similar debt instrument, those financial instruments are classed as financral habilities Financial
habiities are presented as such in the balance sheet Finance costs and gains or losses relating to
financial habilities are included in the iIncome statement Finance costs are calculated so as to produce
a constant rate of return on the outstanding hability Where the contractual terms of share capital do
not have any terms meeting the defintion of a financial liability then this 1s classed as an equity
Instrument Dwvidends and distnbutions relating to equity instruments are debited directly to equity

Trade payables

Trade payables are inthally recorded at far value, but subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method




BrainJuicer Group PLC 39
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2010

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Equity mstruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of diract issue costs

Share premium
Share premium represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of constderation received for
equity shares, net of expenses of the share issue

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the parent company's cost of investment and a
subsidiary's share capital and share premium The merger reserve in these accounts has ansen from a
group reccnstruction upon the incorporation and listing of the parent company that was accounted for
as a common control transacton Common control transactions are accounted for using merger
accounting rather than the acquisiton method

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve represents the differences ansing from translation of
investments In overseas subsidiaries

Treasury shares

Where the Company purchases the Company's equity share capital, the consideraton paid Is
deducted from the total shareholders’ equity and classified as treasury shares until they are cancelled
Where such shares are subsequently sold or re-issued, any consideration received is included In total
shareholders’ equity No gain or loss 15 recognised on the purchase, sale, 1ssue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments

Significant accounting estimates and judgements
Intangible Assets

To date, the Group has invested £1,604,000 in developing a new software platform to deliver its
research No amortisation was charged durning the year as the platform was not ready for use As
required by IAS 38, management has performed an impairment review and remain confident that the
carrying amount of the asset 1s adequately supported by the future cash flows attributable to that asset

Financial instruments

As explained in Note 7, during 2009 and 2008 the Group acquired an interest in an unlisted company,
Slater Marketing Group Pty Limited ("Slater”} Under the terms of the share purchase agreement, cash
consideration of AUD$1,040,000 and a vanable number of ordinary shares to the value of
AUD$1,000,000 become payable on or before 31 December 2012 subject to certain performance
condittons being met by Slater On the last working day of February, May, August and November In
each of 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, the Group has the option to acquire Stater whether or not the
performance conditions have been satisfied

Because there 1s no active market for the shares of Slater and given the range of possible cutcomes,
no reliable method of valuation, the investment and associated derivatives in respect of the share
purchase agreement for the acquisition of Slater have been recorded at cost

If it were possible to reliably value the investment and related denvatives the investment would be
recorded at fair value, with changes in farr value taken to equity The derivatives would be categonsed
as financial instruments, they would be recorded at fair value, and any changes in thetr farr value would
be recorded in the Income statement
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Consolidation

The share purchase agreement for the acquisition of Slater has not been accounted for as an
acquisition as control has not passed to the Group

Although the Group has a call optien over the share capital of Slater, the option was not exercisable at
the balance sheet date In our view, therefore, it would not be appropriate to consolidate the assets
and habiities of Slater given that control cannot be demonstrated

Share options

The fair value of options granted 1s determined using the Hull-White option valuation medel (for the
employee share option scheme) and a Monte Carlo simulation model (for the long term incentive
scheme) These models require a number of estimates and assumptions The significant mputs into
the models are share price at grant date, exercise price, historic exercise multiples, expected volatility
and the nsk free rate Volatility is measured at the standard deviation of expected share prices returns
based on statistical analysis of historical share prices

Segment information

The CEO reviews the Group's internal reports 1n order to assess performance and allocate resources
Management has determined the operating segments based upon these reports The CEO considers
the business from both a geographic and product perspective From a product perspective,
management assesses the performance of its ‘Juicy’ and ‘Twist' products

The CEQO assesses the performance of the operating segments based on operating profit before
allocation of central overheads Interest income 1s not included in the result for each operating
segment that I1s reviewed by the CEQ

2010 2009
Revenue

from Revenue
external Operating from external Operating
customers  Profit/(loss) customers Profit/(loss)
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Uruted Kingdom 7,858 4,065 5525 2,527
North America 4,143 1,589 2,576 859
Netherlands 2,007 686 2,280 958
Switzerland 1,411 710 872 391
Germany 778 255 551 178
China 82 (45) - -
Brazil 81 (72) - -
16,360 7,188 11,814 4,913
Juicy* 8,845 54% 6,776 57%
Twist 7,515 46% 5,038 43%

16,360 11,814

Juicy preducts are BrainJuicer's new methodologies that challenge traditional approaches Twast
products are industry standard quantitative research methods but with BrainJuicer's twist of adding
qualitative diagnostics
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Segment information (continued}

*One of our products was reclassified from Juicy to Twist at the beginning of the reporting perncd
Revenue from this product amounted to £746,000 (2009 £394,000) for the year The comparatives
have been restated to take account of thus reclassification

A reconciliation of total operating profit for reportable segments to total profit before income tax s
provided below

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Operating profit for reportable segments 7,188 4913
Central overheads (4,972) (3,268)
Operating profit 2,216 1,645
Finance income 1 13
Profit before income tax 2,217 1,658

Revenues are attributed to geographical areas based upon the location in which the sale originated

IFRS 8 has been amended so that a measure of segment assets 1s only required to be disclosed if the
measure 1s regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker The amendment s effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

Consclidated cash, trade receivable, property, plant and equipment and intangible asset balances are
regularly provided to the chief aperating decision-maker but segment assets and segment Liabiltes
are not provided

The entity 1s domiciled in the UK The result of its revenue from external customers in the UK is
£7,858,000 (2009 £5,525,000), and the tatal of revenue from external customers from other countres
IS £8,502,000 (2009 £6,289,000)

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets located 1n the
UK s £1,837,000 (2000 £939,000), and the total of these non-current assets located n other
countries 1s £40,000 (2002 £35,000)

Revenues of £1,736,000 (2009 £1,909,000) are denved from a single external customer £830,000
{2008 £1,202,000) of these revenues are atinbutable to the UK operating segment with £574,000
(2009 £461,000), £307,000 (2009 £246,000) and £25,000 (2009 £NiII) attnbutable to the
Netherlands, North Amencan and German segments respectively
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Property, plant and equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Furniture,
fittings and Computer
equipment hardware Total
£'000s £'000s £'000s
At 1 January 2010
Cost 118 254 372
Accumulated depreciation (69) (191) {260)
Net book amount 49 63 112
Year ended 31 December 2010
Opening net book amount 49 63 112
Additions 160 113 273
Depreciatton charge for the year (59) (68) (127}
Foreign exchange - 1 1
Closing net book amount 150 109 259
At 31 December 2010
Cost 278 368 646
Accumulated depreciation (128) (259) (387)
Net book amount 150 109 259
For the year ended 31 December 2009
Furniture,
fittings and Computer
equipment hardware Total
£'000s £'000s £'000s

At 1 January 2009
Cost 107 201 308
Accumulated depreciation (43) {108) (151)
Net book amount 64 93 157
Year ended 31 December 2009
Opening net book amount 64 93 157
Additions 13 57 70
Depreciation charge for the year (26) (87) (113)
Foreign exchange (2) - (2)
Closing net book amount 49 63 112
At 31 December 2009
Cost 118 254 372
Accumulated depreciation (69) (191) {260)
Net book amount 49 63 112
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Intangible assets
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Goodwill Software Software Software
licenses develop-
ment in
progress Total
£000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2010
Cost - 198 68 832 1,098
Accumulated amortisation - (168) (68) - (236)
Net book amount - 30 - 832 862
Year ended 31 December 2010
Opening net book amount - 30 - 832 862
Additions 6 10 - 772 788
Amortisation charge for the year - (27) - - (27)
Closing net book amount 6 13 - 1,604 1,623
At 31 December 2010
Cost 6 208 68 1,604 1,886
Accumulated depreciation - {195) {68) - (263)
Net book amount 6 13 - 1,604 1,623

During the year the Group invested £772,000 in developing the Group's software platform for
delivering its research At the balance sheet date the platform was not ready for use and so no
amortisation was charged for the year An impairment review was carried out during the year and no

impairment adjustments were necessary

Goodwill Software Software Software
licenses develop-
ment in
progress Total
£'000 £°000 £000 £°000 £'000
At 1 January 2009
Cost - 91 68 516 675
Accumulated amortisation - (42) (8) - (50)
Net book amount - 49 60 516 625
Year ended 31 December 2009
Opening net book amount - 49 60 516 625
Additions - 38 3 316 357
Amortisation charge for the year - (56) (63) - (119)
Foreign exchange - {1) - - &)
Closing net book amount - 30 - 832 862
At 31 December 2009
Cost - 198 68 832 1,098
Accumulated amortisation - (168) (68) - {236)
Net book amount - 30 - 832 862
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Financlal assets - available for sale investments

In 2008 the Group acquired an interest of 3 64% n Slater Marketing Group Pty Limited, an unlisted
company Incorporated in Australia, for cash consideration of £40,000 plus transactton costs of
£50,000 Dunng 2009 the Group acquired a further interest of 3 64% for cash consideration of
£43,000

Under the terms of the share purchase agreement, cash consideration of AUD$1,040,000 (£682,000)
and a vanable number of ordinary shares to the value of AUD$1,000,000 become payable on or
before 31 December 2012 subject to certain performance conditions being met by Slater Marketing
Group Pty Limited On the last working day of February, May, August and November 1n each of 2008,
2010, 2011 and 2012, the Group has the option to acquire Slater Markettng Group Pty Limited
whether or not the performance conditions have been satisfied These conditions had not been met at
the balance sheet date

The investment has been classified as an available for sale financial asset and measured at cost

As stated in our principal accounting policies note, investments in equity instruments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose farr value cannot be reliably measured, and
derivatives that are inked to {(and must be settled by delivery of such) unguoted equity instruments,
are measured at cost

There ts no active market for the shares of Slater Marketing Group Pty Limited and given the range of
possible outcomes, no rehable method of valuation The investment and associated derivatives In
respect of the share purchase agreement for the acquisition of Slater Marketing Group Pty Limited
have been recorded at a cost of £133,000 (2009 £133,000) and £nil (2008 £nil) respectively In the
opinion of the directors no relable far value information can be disclosed for these financial
instruments

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to some financial nsks The Group does not consider it necessary to
use any derivative financial instruments to hedge these nsks

Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s managed on a Group basis, arnsing from credit exposures to outstanding recewvables and
cash and cash equivalents Management regularly monitor recewables reports on a Group basis
Since the vast majonity of the Group's clients are large blue-chip orgamisations, the Group has only
ever suffered minimal bad debts

The Group has concentrations of credit nisk as follows

2010 2009
£000s £000s

Cash and cash equivalents
HSBC Bank PLC 2,681 2,333
UBS 83 10
Other 6 -
2,770 2,343

Trade receivables
Related parties — Unilever group of companies (Note 23) 485 806
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Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk - Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in the United States, Canada, the Netherlands, Germany, Switzerland, Brazil and
China and 15 exposed to currency movements impactng future commercial transactions and net
investments in those countries  Management believe that both foreign currency transaction and
translation risk are not matenal to the financial performance of the Group

At 31 December 2010, if GBP had strengthened by 9% against the US Dollar, with all other variables
held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been £4,000 {2009 £13,000) lower, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses on the translation of intra-group balances Conversely, if GBP had
weakened by 17% against the US Dollar, with all other variables held constant, post tax profits for the
year would have been £4,000 (2008 £13,000) higher

At 31 December 2010, If GBP had strengthened by 11% against the Euro, with all other variables held
constant, post tax profit for the year would have been £8,000 (2009 £17,000) lower, matnly as a result
of foreign exchange losses on the translation of trade recewvables and intra-group balances
Conversely, If GBP had weakened by 11% against the Euro with all other vanables held constant, post
tax profits for the year would have been £8,000 (2008 £17,000) higher

At 31 December 2010, If GBP had strengthened by 9% against the Swiss Franc, with all other
variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been £3,000 higher (2009 £9,000
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses on the translation of intra-group balances
Conversely, If GBP had weakened by 9% against the Swiss Franc, with all other vanables held
constant, post tax profits for the year would have been £3,000 lower (2009 £9,000 higher)

At 31 December 2010, iIf the Euro had strengthened by 11% against the Swiss Franc, with all other
vanables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been £15,000 (2009 £7,000) higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains on the transiation of trade receivables Conversely, if the
Euro had weakened by 11% against the Swiss Franc, with all other vanables held constant, post tax
profits for the year would have been £15,000 (2009 £7,000) lower ]
At 31 December 2010, If GBP had strengthened by 8% against the Canadian Dollar, with all other
variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been £5,000 (2009 £1,000) lower ,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains on the transiation of intra-group balances Conversely, if
GBP had weakened by 8% against the Canadian Dollar, with all other variables held constant, post tax
profits for the year would have been £5,000 (2009 £1,000) higher

Management have estimated a reasonable shift in currency rates based upon the historical volatility of
each currency pair over a two year period to the balance sheet date

Liquidity risk

The Group forecasts cashflows as part of its business planning procedures and monitors progress
against forecasts on a monthly basis Cash 1s not invested on a long-term basis in order to prudently
manage liquidity nsk At present the Group has no overdraft or similar borrowing facilities

Other risks

Management consider that price nsk and interest rate risk are not matenal to the Group
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Financial risk management {continued)

Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that 1t 1s able to continue as a going concern while
maximising 1ts return to shareholders The Company's capital structure consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company, issued share capual,

reserves and retained earnings The Company has no borrowings or borrowing faciities and s not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements

Financial instruments by category

At the balance sheet date the Group held the following financial instruments by category

Assets as per balance sheet

2010 2009
£°000 £000
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables 4,719 4,073
Cash and cash equivalents 2,770 2,343
Available-for-sale
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 133 133
7,622 6,549
Liabilities as per balance sheet
2010 2008
£°000 £°000
Other Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Trade payables 769 757
Accruals 2,780 1,343
3,549 2,100

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments which will be settled on a gross basis into
relevant maturnity groupings based on the remaining pericd at the balance sheet date to the contractual
matunty date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2
year and 2 years and 5 years

£°000 £000 £°000
Other Financial habilities carried at amortised cost 3,549 - -
Contingent consideration (Note 7) - 682 -

3,549 682 -

These cash outflows will be financed from existing cash reserves and operating cash flows
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Inventory

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Work In progress 47 12
Trade and other receivables

2010 2009

£'000 £000
Trade recewvables 4,506 3,427
Other receivables 51 44
Prepayments and accrued income 162 602

4,719 4,073

Trade and other recevables are due within one year and are not interest bearing

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the balance sheet date 1s the carrying amount of each class of
recevable detalled above The Group does not hold any collateral as securty

The Directors do not believe that there 1s a significant concentration of credit risk within the trade
receivables balance

As of 31 December 2010, trade receiwvables of £1,008,000 (2009 £566,000) were past due but not
impaired

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows

2010 2009

£000 £'000

Up to 3 months 953 506
3 to 6 months 53 60
1,006 566

As of 31 December 2010, trade receivables of £Nil (2009 £Nil) were impaired

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following
currencies

2010 2009

£000 £000
Sterling 1,845 1,658
Euro 1,453 1,434
US Dollar 1,058 701
Swiss Franc 146 280
Canadian Dollar 123 -
Brazihan Real 27 -
Chinese Yuan 67 -

4,719 4,073
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Share capital

The share capital of BrainJuicer Group PLC consists only of fully paid ordinary shares with a par value
of 1p each All shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital and
represent one vote at the Annual General Meeting

Allotted, called up and fully paid:

Ordinary
shares
Number £'000
At 1 January 2009 12,616,526 126
Exercise of share options 316,119 3
At 31 December 2009 12,932,645 129
Exercise of share options 143,709 2
Issue of shares 36,760 -

At 31 December 2010 13,113,114 131

During the year, 143,709 new ordinary shares were 1ssued to satisfy the exercise of employee share
options at a weighted average exercise price of 27 pence per share The total proceeds were £38,675
of which £1,437 was recognised as share capital, and £37,238 as share premum The weighted
average share price at exercise date was 163 pence per share

Dunng the year, 36,760 shares were i1ssued for services to the Company amounting to £64,800
£64 433 was recognised as share premium and £367 as share capital

On 4 January 2010, the Company purchased 37,000 ordinary shares of 1 pence each in the Company
into treasury at a price of 131 5 pence per share in accordance with the authonty granted to it by
shareholders at the Annual Generai Meeting held on 13 May 2009 10,000 of the shares were
fransferred out of treasury to enable the exercise of options and 17,000 to award shares under the
Company's Employee Share Incentive Plan

On 22 April 2010, the Company purchased a further 650,000 ordinary shares into treasury at a price of
165 pence per share

On 29 September 2010, the Company transferred 18,293 ordinary shares out of treasury to satisfy the
exercise of employee share options On the same day the Company purchased 18,293 ordinary
shares into treasury at a price of 215 pence per share

On 1 October 2010, the Company transferred 1,004 ordinary shares out of treasury to satisfy the
exercise of employee share options On the same day the Company purchased 1,004 ordinary shares
into treasury at a price of 200 pence per share

Following these transactions, at the end of the reporting penod the number of ordinary shares
amounted to 13,113,114 (2009 12,932,645) of which shares held in treasury amounted to 660,000
(2009 Nil) The treasury shares will be used to help satsfy the requirements of the Group’s share
incentive schemes Durning the year, 487,075 employee share options over ordinary shares with a
weighted average exercise price of 106 pence per share were granted to Directors and employees
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Share capital (continued)
Share options

Employee share option scheme

The Group 1ssues share options to directors and to employees under an HM Revenue and Customs
approved Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) scheme Employees resident overseas are ehgible
to participate in the scheme but their options do not qualify as HM Revenue and Customs approved

Generally the grant price for share options 1s equal to the mid-market opening quoted market price of
the Company shares on the date of grant Options vest evenly over a period of one to three years
following grant date If share options remain unexercised after a penod of ten years from the date of
grant, the options expire Share options are forfeited In most circumstances If the employee leaves the
Group before the options vest, unless otherwise agreed by the Group

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and therr related weighted average exercise
prices are as follows

2010 2009

Average Average

exercise price exercise price
per share Options per share Options
p No p No
Outstanding at 1 January 99.7 1,089,568 77.8 1,202,386
Granted 106.4 487,075 94.0 207,313
Lapsed 83.7 (11,442) 147.5 (4,012)
Exercised 38.5 (196,340) 11.9 (316,119)
Outstanding at 31 December 111.0 1,368,861 99.7 1,089,568
Exercisable at 31 December 114.1 699,331 83.7 663,584

The weighted average share price at date of exercise of options exercised during the year was 167 6
pence (2009 94 Op) The weighted average farr value of options granted in the year was 89 3 (2009
42 7p)

The farr value of options granted outstanding was determined using the Hull-White valuation model

Significant inputs into the mode! include a weighted average share price of 106 4p (2009 94 Op) at the
grant date, the exercise prices shown above, weighted average volatiity of 35% (2009 38%), dwidend
yield of Nil (2009 Nil), an expected option life derived from historic exercise multiples and an annual
risk-free interest rate of 4 5% (2009 4 5%)

The expected volatiity inputs to the model were calculated using historic daily share prices of the
Company's shares
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Share capital (continued)

At 31 December, the Group had the following outstanding options and exercise prices

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
Average average Average average
exercise remaining exercise remaining
price per contractual price per contractual
share Options life share Options Iife
Expiry date p No Months p No Months
2013 11.4 27,648 37.0 11 4 148,204 370
2014 43.5 104,843 57.0 433 105,673 569
2015 §2.3 67,738 63.1 623 72,556 630
2016 62.3 42,155 76.5 623 90,326 78 4
2017 162.5 270,959 85.0 162 5 270,959 850
2018 147.5 181,480 99.0 147 5 194,537 990
2019 94.0 186,953 109.0 940 207,313 108 0
2020 106.4 487,075 122.6 - - -

At 31 December 11.0 1,368,861 99.1 9970 1,089,568 808

Long term incentive plan

During the year the Company established a long term incentive plan for senior executives All awards
vest on 30 Apnl 2014, the Performance Date, if the Achieved Share Price 15 at least £3, where the
Achieved Share Price 15 the average of the market value of a share for a penod of 30 days finishing on
the day prior to the relevant Performance Date The method used to determine the number of
ordinary shares that may be acquired through the exercise of options granted under the award 1s
explained in the Remuneration Report on page 22

Dunng the year the Company granted 8,951 award units The instruments were valued using a Monte
Carlo simulation method using a weighted average share price at grant date of 183 pence, a share
thquidity discount factor of 10%, weighted average expected volatiity of 28 17% (denved from the
average of annualzed standard dewiations of dally continuously compounded returns on the
Company's stock, calculated back from the date of grant to the date of float) a weighted average risk-
free rate of 2 01% and a weighted average expected dividend yield of 1 36%

Share-based payment charge

The total charge for the year relating to equity settled employee share-based payment plans (for both
the employee stock option plan and the senior executive long term Incentive plan) was £308,000
(2009 £172,000),

Non-employee equity settled share based payments amounted to £65,000 (2009 £Nil)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2010

Provisions
Dilapidation
provisions
£'000
At 1 January 2009 48
Provided in the year 6
Exchange differences (1
At 31 December 2009 53
Provided in the year 25
At 31 December 2010 78

Dilapidation provisions represent the Group's best estimate of costs required to meet its obligations
under property lease agreements At the balance sheet date £Nil (2009 £25,000) was included within
current llabiibes

Trade and other payables

2010 2009
£000 £000
Trade payables 769 757
Social secunty and other taxes 455 493
Accruals and deferred income 2,780 1,343

4,004 2,593

Trade and other payables are due within one year and are non-interest beanng The contractual terms
for the payment of trade payables are generally 30 days from recerpt of invoice
Commitments

The Group leases offices under non-cancellable cperating leases for which the future aggregate
minimum lease payments are as follows

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

No later than 1 year 189 126
Later than 1 but no later than 5 years 390 183
579 289

Included within the amounts disclosed above, the Group has the benefit of seven months rent free for
the first three years of a lease with an annual rental commitment of £163,000 At the balance sheet
date one rent free month was outstanding (2009 nil) The benefit of the rent free months has been
spread over the penod of the lease to the first break point in 2013
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Expenses by nature

Changes in work In progress
Employee benefit expense
Depreciation and amortisation
Net foreign exchange losses
Other expenses

Analysed as
Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

Profit hefore taxation

Profit before taxation is stated after charging

Auditor's remuneration:
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the parent
company and consolidated financial statements

Fees payable to the company’s auditor for other services
Other services supplied pursuant to such legislation
Taxation services

Other services

Operating lease expenses:
Land and buildings

Depreciation and amortisation

Net loss on foreign currency translation

52

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
35 (2)
7,222 4,758
154 232

97 164
6,636 5,017
14,144 10,169
3,738 2,879
10,406 7,290
14,144 10,189
2010 2009
£000 £000
35 27

6 3

13 12

1 -

262 173
154 232

87 164
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Employee benefit expense

The average number of staff employed by the group dunng the financial year amounted to

2010 2009

No No

Number of administrative staff 91 70
The aggregate employment costs of the above were

2010 2009

£000 £'000

Wages and salanes 5715 3,839

Social secunty costs 704 405

Pension costs — defined contnbution plans 219 155

Share based remuneration 372 172

Medical benefits* 212 187

7,222 4,758

The directors have identified 6 (2009 11) key management personnel, including directors
*Comparatives have been restated to disclose medical benefits

Compensation to key management 1s set out below

2010 2009

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 610 1,119
Social secunty costs 75 96
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 25 43
Share-based remuneration 180 112
890 1,370

Details of directors’ emoluments are given in the Remuneration Report on page 20
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2010

Investment income

Bank interest receivable

Income tax expense

Current tax
Deferred tax

Income tax expense for the year differs from the standard rate of taxation as follows

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Profit on ordinary activities multiphed by standard rate of tax of 28%
(2009 28%)

Difference between tax rates applhed to Group’'s subsidianes
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Other temporary differences

Adjustment to current tax in respect of prior years

Credit on exercise of share options taken to income statement

Total tax

54

2010 2009
£000 £'000
1 13
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
789 498
(52) (25)
737 473
2,217 1,658
621 464
24 4
127 41
(47) (24)
19 (12)

7 -

737 473
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Deferred tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authonty The offset amounts are as foilows

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Deferred tax assets
- Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 159 85
- Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months 6 -
Deferred tax habilities
- Deferred tax lability to be recovered within 12 months (68) (44)
Deferred tax asset (net) 97 41
The gross movement in deferred tax Is as follows

2010 2009

£000 £'000
At 1 January 41 81
Income statement credit 52 25
Tax credited/(charged) directly to equity 4 {45)
At 31 December 97 41

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabiities dunng the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the sarne tax junisdiction, is as follows

Deferred tax asseots

Other Share option Dilapidation

provisions scheme provisions Total

£'000 £'000 £000 £°000

At 1 January 2010 - 74 11 85
Charged to iIncome statement 6 67 3 76
Charged directly to equity - 4 - 4
At 31 December 2010 6 145 14 165
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Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities Accelerated
capital
allowances Total
£'000 £000
At 1 January 2010 (44) (44)
Charged to income statement {(24) (24)
At 31 December 2010 {68) {(68)

There are no unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that their recoverability 1s considered probable

The deferred tax asset In respect of the company's share option scheme relates to corporate tax
deductions available on exercise of UK employee share options

Eamings per share
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attnibutable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in i1ssue during the year

2010 2009
£000 £000
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 1,480 1,185
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Iin 1ssue 12,604,214 12,923,663

Basic earnings per share 11.7 92p
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2010
Earnings per share (continued)

(b) Diluted

57

Diluted earnings per share I1s calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares For share options, a
calculation 15 made In order to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at farr
value (determined as the average annual market share pnce of the Company's shares) based on the
monetary value of the subscription rnights attached to outstanding share options The number of shares
calculated in this way 1s compared with the number of shares that would have been i1ssued assuming

the exercise of the share options

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company and profit used
to determine diluted earmings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue
Share options

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings
per share

Diluted earnings per share

Dividends per share

Dividends paid on Ordinary Shares
Intenim, O 6p per share (2009 0 6p per share)

Final dividend relating to 2009, 1 3p per share (2009 1p per share)

Total ordinary dividends paid in the year

2010
£'000

1,480

12,604,214
496,991

13,101,205

11.3p

2010
£'000

78

78
169

247

2009
£000

1,185

12923663
183,422

13,107,085
90p

2009
£000

77

77
130

207

A dividend In respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 of 1 8p per share, 1s to be proposed at the

AGM These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable

Related party transactions

The Group made sales to companies connected to Unilever UK Holdings Limited, a significant
shareholder, dunng the year totaling £1,735,721 (2009 £1,909,286) The balance outstanding at the

year end was £485,035 (2009 £805,545)

Services are sold to related parties on an arm’s length basis at pnices available to third parties

The wife of Mark Muth, a director of the Company, provided services for the Group totalling £9,550
(2009 £Nil) There was no balance outstanding at the year end (2009 ENIil)
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Cash generated from operations

2010 2009

£000 £'000

Profit before taxation 2,217 1,658

Depreciation . 127 113

Amortisation 27 119
Interest recewved (1) (13)

Share-based payment expense 374 172

(Increase)/decrease in inventory (35) 2
Increase I1n receivables {567) (867)

Increase in payables 1,374 524
Exchange differences 20 (63)

Net cash generated from operations 3,536 1,645

Business combinations

On 7 January 2010 the Group entered inte a share purchase agreement to acquire the entire 1ssued
share capital of HighLevel Research Inc , a company incorporated in Canada

Detalls of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as foliows

£°000

Cash consideration 47
Cash and cash equivalents 4
Property, plant and equipment 1
Trade recewvables (farr value and gross contractual amount) 79
Payables (7)
Accruals (38)
Net identifiable assets acquired 41
Goodwill 6
47

The acquired business contributed revenues of £468,000 and net profit of £55,000 to the Group for the
peniod from 7 January 2010 to 31 December 2010 Had the company been acquired on 1 January
2010 its contribution to revenues and profit would have been the same Acquisition costs of £6,000 are
included in the Income statement

Seasonality of revenues

Based upon pnor experience, Group revenues tend to be higher in the second-half of the financial
year than in the first six months

For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenues for the second half of the year represented 56% of
total revenues compared to 59% for the year ended 31 December 2009
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Company balance sheet

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets
Debtors due within one year
Cash at bank

Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves

Share capital

Share premium account

Retained earnings

Equity shareholders’ funds

Registered Company No 5840040

o0 o ~J

2010 2009
£'000 £°000
1,787 834
669 623
2,456 1,457
176 1,003
1,057 600
1,233 1,603
(838) (345)
395 1,258
2,851 2,715
131 129
1,549 1,447
1,171 1,139
2,851 2,715

These financial statements were approved by the directors on 24 March 2011 and are signed on therr

behalf by

J Pt

John Kearon James Geddes

Director Director
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Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act
2006 They have been prepared under the historical cost convention and n accordance with
applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and law The principal accounting policies are
summarnsed below They have all been applied consistently throughout the year

Investments
Fixed asset iInvestments are shown at cost less provision for imparrment

Debtors
Debtors are stated at nominal value reduced by estirated rrecoverable amounts

Related party transactions

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard Number 8 Related Party Disclosures, the company
Is exempt from disclosing transactions with wholly owned entities that are part of the BrainJuicer
Group as It 1s a parent company publishing consolidated financial statements

Share-based payments

Equity-settled, share-based payments are measured at far value at the date of grant Equity-settled,
share-based payments that are made available to employees of the Company’s subsidianies are
treated as Increases In equity over the vesting period of the award, with a corresponding increase In
the Company's Investments In subsidiaries, based on an estimate of the number of shares that will
eventually vest

Profit for the year

The Company has made full use of the exemptions as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act
2006 and accordingly the profit and loss account of the Company I1s not presented as part of the
accounts The parent company profit for the year to 31 December 2010 of £1,121,000
(2009 £1,006,000) 1s included in the Group profit for the financial year Details of executive and non-
executive directors’ emoluments and their interest in shares and options of the company are shown
within the directors’ remuneration report on pages 19 to 22
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Fixed assets

Furniture Assets in the

Plant and and course of

machinery equipment construction Total

Cost
£000 £000 £'000

At 1 January 2010 2 - 832 834
Additions 72 145 772 989
At 31 December 2010 74 145 1,604 1,823
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2010 - - - -
Provided in the year 14 22 - 36
At 31 December 2010 14 22 - 36
Net book amount
At 31 December 2010 60 123 1,604 1,787
At 31 December 2009 2 - 832 834

Assets In the course of construction represent amounts capitalised in respect of the new software
platform for delivering our research No depreciation was charged dunng the year as the platform was
not ready for use

Investments

Other Group

investments companies Total

Cost

£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2010 133 490 623
Share-based payment charge in respect of subsidianes - 45 45
Additions - 1 1
At 31 December 2010 133 536 669
Net book amount
At 31 December 2010 133 536 669

At 31 December 2009 133 490 623
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings
Details of subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2010 are as follows

Activity Interest in issued
share capital

BrainJuicer Limited* Provision of online 100%
market research services

BrainJuicer BV Provision of online 100%
market research services

Brainduicer Inc Provision of online 100%
market research services

BrainJuicer Canada Inc Provision of onhne 100%
market research services

BrainJuicer Sarl Provision of online 100%
market research services

BramnJuicer GmbH Provision of online 100%
market research services

BramJuicer Marketing Consulting Provision of cnline 100%

(Shanghai) Co, Ltd market research services

BrainJuicer Do Brazil Servicos de Provision of online 100%

Marketing LTDA market research services

Country of
incorporation

UK
Netheriands
USA
Canada
Switzerland
Germany
Brazil

China

*BraindJuicer Limited 15 a direct subsidiary of BrainJuicer Group PLC The remaiming subsidiaries are

each direct subsidianies of Brainduicer Limited

Debtors

Amounts due from group undertakings
Prepayments
Corporation tax recoverable

Creditors - Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Accruals and deferred income

2010 2009
£'000 £1000
56 966
104 37
16 -
176 1,003
2010 2009
£'000 £000
182 82

- 40
656 223

838 345
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

Share capital

Allotted, called up and fully pad

£000 £°000
At 1 January 2010 12,932,645 129
Exercise of share options 143,709 2
Issue of shares 36,760 -
At 31 December 2010 13,113,114 131
At 1 January 2009 12,616,526 126
Exercise of share options 316,119 3
At 31 December 2009 12,932,645 129
Reserves
Share Share Retained
capital premium earnings Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £°000
At 1 January 2010 129 1,447 1,139 2,715
Share-based remuneration charge - - 308 308
Profit for the financial year - - 1,121 1,121
Dwidend pad - - (247) (247)
Share options exercised 1 37 - 38
Share Incentive award 1 65 - 66
Purchase of own shares - - (1,150) (1,150)
At 31 December 2010 131 1,549 1,171 2,851

The comparatives have been restated to combine Other reserve (being adjustments to equity In
respect of share based payments) with retained earnings




